## CERTIFIED COPY OF A SPECIAL RESOLUTION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE UNIVERSITY HEIGHTS COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

BE IT RESOLVED as a Special Resolution of the membership of the University Heights Community Association that the By-Laws of the said Association are hereby repealed and replaced by the form of By-Laws attached hereto.

Certified to be a true copy of the Special Resolution passed by the membership of the , 1993, which Special University Heights Community Association on April 23
Resolution is in full force and effect unamended.

Registrar of Corporations Province of Liberta

DATED this 23 day of April, 1993.

Secretary

40.00

## UNIVERSITY HEIGHTS COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION BY-LAWS



1. NAME

The name of the Association shall be "University Heights Community Association".

## 2. <u>INTERPRETATION</u>

In these By-Laws, unless the context otherwise requires,

"Association" means the University Heights Community Association;

"Board" means the Board of Directors of the Association;

"Constitution" means, collectively, the Application for incorporation of the Association, dated October 19, 1967, and these By-Laws;

"Director" means a member of the Board;

"District" means that geographical area comprised of that portion of the South Half (S1/2) of Section Thirty (30) in Township Twenty-four (24) of Range One (1), West of the Fifth (5th) Meridian, which lies to the South of 24th Avenue Northwest, and to the North of the Trans Canada Highway, (16th Avenue Northwest), East of 37th Street Northwest, and on the West of University Drive Northwest;

"Executive" means, at any time, the Officers then holding office;

"Officer" means an Officer of the Association appointed in accordance with these By-Laws; and

## "Special Resolution" means

- (i) a resolution passed
  - (A) at a general meeting of which not less than 21 days' notice specifying the intention to propose the resolution has been duly given, and
  - (B) by the vote of not less than 75% of those members who, if entitled to do so, vote in person or by proxy,
- (ii) a resolution proposed and passed as a special resolution at a general meeting of which less than 21 days' notice has been given, if all the members entitled to attend and vote at the general meeting so agree, or
- (iii) a resolution consented to in writing by all the members who would have been entitled at a general meeting to vote on the resolution in person or by proxy.

92130050052

103672\HGM

### 3. CONSTRUCTION

In these By-Laws, words importing the singular number include the plural and vice versa; words importing gender include the masculine, feminine and neuter genders; and words importing persons include individuals, bodies corporate, partnerships, trusts and unincorporated organizations.

#### 4. <u>MEMBERSHIP</u>

13

140

C

0

C

9

(a) Classes of Membership

Membership shall be made up of:

- (i) Family membership
- (ii) Honorary Membership
- (i) Family Membership

Any family residing within the District may become members with voting privileges upon paying the fee prescribed by the Board. Family memberships with voting privileges shall be available to families residing outside the District on approval of the Board and upon paying the prescribed fee. A Family Membership shall entitle the parents of the family to one (1) vote each at any Association meeting.

(ii) Honorary Membership

Any person who has distinguished himself by outstanding service to this Association or to the City of Calgary is eligible for Honorary Membership upon the approval of the Executive.

- (b) All memberships above described shall lapse on the 31st day of December in each year unless a member on or before the 31st day of December renews his membership by paying the prescribed fee for the ensuing year, or in the case of an Honorary Membership, where such membership is renewed by the Executive.
- (c) Any member may withdraw from the Association at any time by giving the Secretary notice in writing. Said member forfeits any membership fee paid. Any member, upon a majority vote of all members of the Association in good standing, may be expelled from membership for any cause whatsoever.

### 5. MEMBERSHIP FEES

There shall be an annual membership fee of Ten Dollars (\$10.00) per family membership or such other amount as may be determined from time to time by the Board.

103672\MGM

The Association shall have the following Officers and such other Officers as the Board shall determine:

(a) President:

The President shall be ex officio a member of all committees and he shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the Association, the Board and the Executive. In his absence the Vice-President shall preside at any such meetings, and in the absence of both, a chairman may be elected by the meeting to preside thereat.

(b) Vice-President:

The Vice-President shall assist the President in the administration of the Association generally.

(c) Secretary:

The Secretary shall attend and keep minutes of all meetings of the Association and the Board, maintain an up-to-date copy of the constitution and maintain all records of the Association and give all notices of the meetings. The Secretary shall have custody of the seal of the Association, which seal whenever used shall be authenticated by the signatures of the Secretary and the President, or in the case of the death or inability of either to act, by the 1st Vice-President. In the case of absence of the Secretary, his duties shall be discharged by such Officer as may be appointed or determined by the Executive.

(d) Treasurer:

The Treasurer shall receive all monies paid to the Association and shall be responsible for the deposit of the same in whatever bank, trust company, credit union or Treasury Branch the Executive may order. He shall properly account for the funds of the Association and keep such books as may be directed. He shall present a full detailed account of receipts and disbursements to the Executive whenever requested and shall prepare for submission to the Annual Meeting a statement duly audited as hereinafter set forth of the financial position of the Association and submit a copy of the same to the Secretary for the records of the Association.

## 7. MEETINGS

(a) Annual Meeting

The Association shall hold an Annual Meeting on or before the 30th day of April in each year, of which meeting due notice will be given to all members at least eight (8) days previous to the date of the meeting.

103672\MGM C8-AB-4.BYL

## (b) General Meetings

Meetings of the members of the Association may be called at any time by the Secretary upon the instructions of the President or Executive, due notice of which shall be made to the members eight (8) days previous to the date of such meeting. A special meeting shall be called by the President or Secretary upon receipt of a petition signed by not less than Twenty-five (25) members in good standing, setting forth the reasons for calling such meeting, due notice of which will be made to the members at least eight (8) days previous to the meeting.

Thirteen (13) members in good standing either personally present or represented by proxy shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the members of the Association.

Every member entitled to vote at a meeting of the Association may appoint a proxyholder, or one or more alternate proxyholders, to attend, act and vote at that meeting in the manner and to the extent authorized and with the authority conferred by the proxy. A proxy shall be executed by the member in writing, and may conform with Schedule "A" hereto or be in any other effectual form. A person appointed proxyholder must be a member. A proxy shall cease to be effective immediately following the termination of the meeting (or any adjournment thereof) for which it was granted and in any event, no proxy shall be valid after the expiration of twelve (12) months from the date of its execution. A proxy shall be acted upon only if it has been received by the Secretary or the person presiding at the meeting or any adjournment thereof prior to the time of voting. A member may revoke a previously executed and otherwise valid proxy by providing written notice to this effect to the Secretary or person presiding at the meeting or any adjournment thereof, prior to the time of voting.

At all meetings of the Association, every question shall be decided by a majority of the votes of the members present and voting in person or by proxy. Every question shall be decided in the first instance by a show of hands, unless a ballot is demanded by any member.

In the case of equality of votes at any meeting, the person presiding shall have a second or casting vote.

#### (c) Directors Meeting

Meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the Secretary upon the instructions of the President, due notice of which shall be made to the Directors three (3) days previous to the date of such meeting.

The quorum necessary for the transaction of business at a meeting of the Board may be fixed by the Board and unless so fixed shall be one-half (1/2) of the Board. Meetings may be held without notice if a quorum of the Board is present, provided, however, that any business transactions at such meeting shall be ratified at the next regularly called meeting of the Board; otherwise they shall be null and void.

103672\MGH C8-AB-4.BYL

LON

Questions arising at any meeting of the Board shall be decided by a majority of votes. All votes at any such meeting shall be taken by ballot if so demanded by any Director present, but if no demand is made, the vote shall be taken in the usual way by assent or dissent. In the case of an equality of votes, the person presiding at the meeting shall have a second or casting vote.

The Board shall meet no less than three (3) times in each year and at the direction of the President.

#### (d) Executive Meeting

Meetings of the Executive may be called at any time by the President, due notice of which shall be made to the Officers at least twenty-four (24) hours previous to such meeting.

The quorum necessary for the transaction of business at a meeting of the Executive may be fixed by the Executive, and unless so fixed shall be one-half (1/2) of the Executive. Meetings may be held without notice if a quorum of the Executive is present, provided, however, that any resolutions at such meeting shall be ratified at the next regularly called meeting of the Executive; otherwise they shall be null and void.

Questions arising at any Executive meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes. All votes at any such meeting shall be taken by ballot if so demanded by any Officer present, but if no demand is made, the vote shall be taken in the usual way by assent or dissent. In the case of an equality of votes, the person presiding at the meeting shall have a second or casting vote.

## **ELECTIONS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE**

## (a) Directors

The President shall appoint a nominating committee of three (3) members of the Executive at least one (1) month prior to the Annual Meeting. This committee shall nominate sufficient members of the Association as candidates to replace Directors who have completed their term of office or to replace those who are no longer able to serve due to business commitments or for other reasons. Directors who have completed their term of office are eligible for re-election if otherwise qualified. Further nominations for the Board may be made from any member present at the Annual Meeting. The Directors shall be a maximum of eighteen (18) in number at all times. A maximum of one-half of the Directors shall be elected annually for a two (2) year term. The number of Directors which shall be elected in the forthcoming year will be determined at the Directors meeting prior to the Annual Meeting and if no such determination is made, the number of Directors shall be the same as the number of Directors elected at the last annual meeting. Election of Directors shall be made by count of hands unless at least two-thirds of the members then present demand a ballot in which case a ballot shall be taken. A Director may be removed by an unanimous vote of the Directors at a duly constituted Directors meeting. Any

8.

103672\MGM C8-AB-4.BYL member in good standing residing within the District shall be eligible for election to the Board at an annual meeting of the Association or upon a majority vote of members at a meeting held for this purpose. Any Director who ceases to reside in the District shall thereupon cease to be a Director.

#### (b) Executive

At the first Board meeting following the annual meeting, the Directors shall elect from their number the Officers of the Association who shall constitute the Executive for the forthcoming year. Any vacancy occurring in the Executive during the year shall be elected by the Directors from their number unless no such Director wishes to fill the vacancy in the Executive, in which case the Directors may invite a member in good standing to serve on the Executive for the forthcoming year.

#### (c) Remuneration

LO

0 0

C : C

90

No Director or member of the Executive shall receive any remuneration for his services in that capacity.

## 9. <u>DIRECTORS' POWERS</u>

The Directors of the Association may administer the affairs of the Association in all things and make or cause to be made for the Association in its name, any kind of contract which the Association may lawfully enter into and, save as hereinafter provided, generally, may exercise all such other powers and all such other acts and things as the Association is by its constitution or otherwise authorized to exercise and do.

Without in any way derogating from the foregoing, the Directors are expressly empowered, from time to time, to purchase, lease or otherwise acquire, alienate, sell, exchange or otherwise dispose of shares, stocks, rights, warrants, options and other securities, lands, buildings and/or other property, movable or immovable, real or personal, or any right or interest therein owned by the Association for such consideration and upon such terms and conditions as they may deem advisable.

Further, the Directors may authorize the Treasurer to disburse the funds of the Association for payment of normal operating expenses and/or non-recurring expenses non-capital in nature.

#### 10. FINANCES

- (a) The Association shall maintain a bank account and all expenditures shall be by cheque.
- (b) For the purpose of carrying out its objects, the Association may borrow or raise or secure the payment of money in such manner as it thinks fit, and in particular by the issue of debentures, but this power shall be exercised only under the authority of the Association, and in no case shall debentures be issued without the sanction of a special resolution of the Association.

103672\MGM C8-AB-4.BYL

## (c) Auditors

CO

10

C

C

٠٤.

C.

100

ON

11.

- (i) The books, accounts and records of the Secretary and Treasurer shall be audited at least once each year by a duly qualified accountant or by two (2) members of the Association elected for that purpose at the Annual Meeting. A complete and proper statement of the standing of the books for the previous year shall be submitted by such auditor at the Annual Meeting of the Association. December 31st each year shall be the end of the fiscal year of the Association.
- (ii) The books and records of the Association may be inspected by any member of the Association at the Annual Meeting provided for herein or at any time upon giving reasonable notice and arranging a time satisfactory to the Officers having charge of the same. Each member of the Executive shall, at all times, have access to such books and records.

## PROTECTION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS OF THE ASSOCIATION

## (a) Limitation of Liability

No Director or Officer shall be liable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of any other Director or Officer or employee, or for joining in any receipt or other act for conformity, or for any loss, damage or expense happening to the Association through the insufficiency or deficiency of title to any property acquired for or on behalf of the Association, or for the insufficiency or deficiency of any security in or upon which any of the moneys of the Association shall be invested, or for any loss or damage arising from the bankruptcy, insolvency or tortious acts of any person with whom any of the moneys, securities or effects of the Association shall be deposited, or for any loss occasioned by any error of judgment or oversight on his part, or for any other loss, damage or misfortune whatever which shall happen in the execution of the duties of his office or in relation thereto, unless the same are occasioned by his own wilful neglect or default; provided that nothing herein shall relieve any Director or Officer from the duty to act in good faith with a view to the best interests of the Association or from exercising the care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances.

#### (b) Indemnity

The Association shall indemnify each Director, Officer, former Director, and former Officer, and each person who acts or acted at the Association's request as a Director or Officer of a body corporate of which the Association is or was a shareholder or creditor (and a person who undertakes or has undertaken any liability on behalf of the Association or any such body corporate) and his heirs and legal representatives, against all costs, charges and expenses, including an amount paid to settle an action or satisfy a judgment, reasonably incurred by him in respect of any civil, criminal or administrative action or proceeding to which he is made a party by reason of being or having been a Director or Officer of the Association or such body corporate, if

103672\MGM C8-AB-4.BYL

- (i) he acted honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the Association whether or not he exercised the same degree of care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would in comparable circumstances; and
- (ii) in the case of a criminal or administrative action or proceeding that is enforced by a monetary penalty, he had reasonable grounds for believing that his conduct was lawful.

## 12. OBJECTS OR BY-LAWS

The Objects or By-Laws may be rescinded, altered or added to by a special resolution.

13. In the event of dissolution or winding-up of the Association all remaining assets of the Association, after payment of liabilities, shall become the property of the City of Calgary.

PASSED by Special Resolution on the <u>33</u> day of April, 1993.

# SCHEDULE "A" PROXY

10:	The Secretary of the University fieights Community Association		
	I,		being a member of the University
Heights (	Community Association, (		
		or failing	him,
(PI	RINT NAME)		(PRINT NAME)
(in each	case a member of the Asse	ociation) as my pro	xy and nominee to attend, act and vote for me
and on n	ny behalf at the meeting o	of the members of	the Association to be held on
	and	l at any adjournme	nt thereof.
(D	ATE OF MEETING)	- u. u, u, u	
	DATED this	day of	, 19
		•	
			(SIGNATURE)

103672\MGM C8-AB-4.BYL

 $\Box$ 

ి సీ